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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Arvind Fashions Limited (Previously known as Arvind J&M
Limited)

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Arvind Fashions
Limited (Previously known as Arvind J&M Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2018 and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind As
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the

Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain’ reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts.
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditer's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financiai statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An

. audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting pelicies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2018, and its profit (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

(¢}  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
are disqualified as on 315t March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

{fi  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
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our separate Report in "Annexure B".

{g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us:
i. The Company did not have any pending litigations;

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There have been no amounis required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W

Al Y- L

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
May 3, 2018
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND
AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARVIND FASHIONS LIMITED (PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS

ARVIND J&M LIMITED)

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “"Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our Independent Auditor's Report of even date,

(D) (a} The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including guantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

{b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
during the year in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our
opinien provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢} The Comipany does not hold any immovable properties and thus disclosure under clause
(i)-(c) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(if) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals. by the management and the discrepancies neticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material having regard to the size of the
Company, and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(iiiy The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act. Consequently, requirements of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not

applicable,

fiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made any
investment covered under section 185 of the Act. However, the Company has advanced
loans or given guarantees or provided security or made investments coverad under section
186 of the Act. We are of the opinion that provisions of section 186 of the Act have been

complied with.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
-has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any Court or any other Tribunal. '

(vi) To the best of ocur knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the Company's
product. Consequently, requirement. of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts pavable in respect of outstanding statutory dues were
in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.
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(viii)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no disputed amounts are
payable as at March 31, 2018.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defauited in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer. However, the term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by
the Company for the purpose for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment
pending application.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no managerial remuneration has been paid/provided.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the detalis have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares during the vear under review. Consequently, requirements of clause (xiv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered inte any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him,

According to the nature of the business, the Company is not required to be registered under

section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
May 3, 2018
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ANNEXURE “"B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARVIND FASHIONS LIMITED (PREVIOUSLY
KNOWN AS ARVIND J&M LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arvind Fashions
Limited (Previously known as Arvind J&M Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018
in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year

ended on that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financia! Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditors” Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial contrels over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their opérating
effectiveness. Cur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain toe the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial

statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
~ misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
* evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting ‘to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. :

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in alli material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal contrel
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India”.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110117W

Ol Sy
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 10250

X

Bangalore
May 3, 2018




Arviiid Fashions Limited

{Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limuted)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 10,53.70.916 4.80.64.276
{b) Capital work-in-progress 5 2.08,543 -
{c) Intangible assets [} 8,80.16,333 17,60,08,0642
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 11.41,20,45,072 R.4825.11.516
(i1} Loans 7 15,72.755 16,07.980
(@i} Other financial assets 7 12,33.90.010 4,25.23 643
() Deferred tax asgats {net) 26 3.91,85,350 2,12,12,341
{fy Otlier non-current assets g 1,52.68,315 10.34,756
‘T'otal non-current assets 11,78,72,57,294 8.77.29.63.154
IL.Current assets
(a) [nventories 9 2,52,90,28.083 2.56,19.29,304
(b} Financial assels
{1) Investments 7 18,375 8.055
(ii} Trade receivables 7 37.73,12.240 34,32,43,449
(iii) Cash and cash cquivalents 7 8.05.36,640 19,59,338
(iv) Bank balance otherthan {iii) above 7 2,67,957 2.50.000
(v) Loans 7 1.27.54,106 17.12,077
(vi} Others financial assets 7 11,11,646 6.041
(¢) Current tax assets (net) 10 - 432,024
{d} Other current assets 8 38,36,06,853 5.18,79.930
Total current assets 3,38,46,35,900 2.96,05,20.818
Total Assets 15,17,18,93,194 11,73.34.83.972
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital H 23,17,02.908 21,74,16,400
Other equity i2 12,07.87.65,527 8.55.27.65.640
Total equity 11.31,04.68.435 8,77.01.82.040
LIABILITIES
L. Non-cuerent liabilities
{a) Financial liabtlities
(i) Borrowings 13 23,40,844 -
{iiy Other financial liabifities i3 2.00,55,220 94,00,000
(b) Lang-ferin provisions 14 1.53.21,145 3.22.82,037
Total non-current liahilitics 5.85.17,209 4.16,82.031
1E.Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 46,08,97,592 22.54.20,038
(ii) Trade payables i3 2,16.22,14,584 1.90.48.10,086
(i) Other financial liabilitics 13 9.3%,34,923 18,50,70,773
(b) Other cuzrent liabilities 15 7.89.63,106 60.27,12,022
(c) Shoet-erin provisions 14 20.10.971 35.96.982
{d} Current jax liabilities (net) 16 48.85.974 -
Tofzl current liabilities 2,80,29.07,550 2.92.16,19.901
Total equity and liabilities 15,17,18,93.194 11.73.34.83.972
Sumimary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the findncial stalements,

As per our report of even dats
For Sorab 5. Engineer & Cuo,
Chartered Accouniants

Fimnt's Registration No. 100417W

Qrally dhe b 10

C.A. Choksii Shreyas. B, Kulin 5. Lalbhai

Partner Director
Membarship No. 1008722 DIN-fi32
Place * Baaurlore Pigae
Date - May 32018 Date : Ms

Kanpan §

Chiel Figancial Officer
Place : Bangalore
Date : May 3.2018

For and on behait of the board of directors of
Arvind Vashions Limited

U\)\)q,\)M

Jaydsh K. Shab
Director
DHN-QOLUR3SY
Place : Baggralore
Date . May 32008

L /\
B.5. Vijhy Mlmar

Cownpany Secretary
Place : Basigalore
Date : May 3,2018



Arvind Fashions Limited
{Fomerty Kiwwt a3 Anviod J&M Lanitad)
Statement of profi{ znd loss for the Year ended March 31,2818

Farticalars

1Epees

Income
Revenug from aperations

Sale of Preducts 17 B.41.70,22,658 2,94,52,26,237

Sale of Services 17 49793270 21,512,300

Operating Income 17 23,39.862 55,30,402
Revenue from operations 8.47.51,55,790 2,92,28.68,939
Other income 18 1,08,37,284 57,29,689
Total income (1) 8,48,59,93.074 . 2292285;98.628
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and accessories consimed 19 1,14,00,7492 1395.47¢
Purchases of stock-in-trade 20 5,33,40,57,380 4,47,33,57.278
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock- 21 4,78,81,191 (2,53,80,64,805)
in-trade
Employee benefits expense 22 51,01,71,428 25,58,33,995
Finance cosls 23 9,77,74,437 4,76,20,067
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 11,49,[8,535 3,6749.061
Other expenses 25 1,62,96,79.358 70,47,96.486
Total expenses {I1) 1,74,58,83,071 2,98546!87%52
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (1I[y=(1-11} 74,01,10,003 (5.60,88,624)
Exceptional items (1V) -
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (V)= (III-1V) ) 74,01,10,603 (5.60,88,624)
Tax expense
Current tax 26 22,37,49,741 -
Deferred tax 26 (1,76,26,949) (2,00,93,015)
Tetal tax expense (V1) 20,61.22,792 (2,06,93.915)

Profit /(Loss)for the year (VII) = (V-VT) 53.39.87.211 (3,53,94.70%)

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income rot to be reclassified do profit
or loss in subsequent periods:

Re-measurement gains £ (losses) an defined benefst phins 12 £9.90.326) (14,97 994
Income tax effect 34 346,060 518420
(65,44,266) (9.75.568)
WNet gain / (Joss) er FVOCT equity instruments 12 9,720 87670
eome tax offect 26 - -
9,720 87,670
Total otirer comprebensive incowe for the year, net of tux (VII1) (6.34.546) (8.91.898)

Total comprehensive income for thee year, net of tax (VII+VIII) 53,33,52,665 (3,62.86.607)

Eaming per equity share [npminal value per share Rs.2/-{March 31,
2017: Rs.2/-

Basic 12 4.70 0.5
Dilvted 12 4.58 (0.68)
Sumnary of significant accounting policies T 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per ow report of ¢ven date

For Sorah 8, Eagineer & Co. For and or behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Arvind Fashions Limited ;
Firm’s Rerisjration Ny J 10417W Wﬁ /
: " ;W
r 1 X (
C.A. Choksiri Shreyas B. Mlin §: Lalbhal thvesh K. Shah
Panner Direcrer ¢ Pirectot

LU LR

Membership No. 100892 NG TR i
Place Bangalore Phacie : Banpaiore Flage - Bargaiore
Date : May 13, 2018 : Date . Mav 3,231R Date : May 3.20HR W
- ’L‘ S vy
Kanpan § B3 Vez-Rumar
Clief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Bangatore Place : Banpalore
Date : May 3,2018 Date : May 3,2018



Arvind Fashions Limited
{Forucrly Knuwn as Arvind J&M Limited)
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,2018

A. Operating activities

Profit/(Loss) Before taxation 74,01,10,003 {5,60,88.624)
Adjustments 1o reconcile profit before tax toonet cash flows:
Depreciation /Amortization 11.,49,18,535 3.97.49,001
Financial guarantee comnission {39.29318)
Interest Income (97,282} (6712}
Inferest and Other Borrowing Cost 9,77,74,437 4,76,20,067
Share based payment expense £0,38,404 7,14,676
21,03,04.776 8,80,77.092
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 95,04,14,779 3,19,88.468
Working Capilal Chanpes:
Changes in Inventories 3,29.04 22! {27,75,63,151)
Changes in frade payahles 25,74,04,498 46,92,42.019
Changes in other current liabifisies {32,37.48916) 60,27,12.5%2
Changes i other financial lizbilitics (9,15,11,086) 19,44,70,641
Changes in provisions 462,777 16,25,676
Clianges in frade receivables (3,40,68,791) 1,50.06,15,195
Changes in other current assels {33,17,26,923) {5,18,79,930)
Changes in other financial assets (8,19,71,769} '(4,25,29,684)
Charges in Other Bank Balances (17,95T) {2.50,000)
‘Net Changes in Working Capital {77,22.76,946) 2,39,64,48,788
Cash Generated from Gperations 17,81,37,833 2,42,84.37.256
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) (21,84,31,743) (4,32,024)
Net Cash from Operating Activities {4,02,93.910) 2,42,80,05,232
B Cash Flow from Investing Activitics
Purchase of Property , Plani & Equipment/intangibic assets (8.46,41,409) (1.35.49,512)
Changes in Capital Advances (1,42,33,559) (10,34,756)
Change in Long Tenn Invesunents 2,92,03,08.970) (8.47,98.54,005)
Change in Current Tesm Investments - 2,68,435
Purchase under Business Transfer Agreement - {2,53,25,08,027)
Changes in Loans given {1.30,06,804) (33,20,05D
Interest [Income 97,079 6,712
Net cash flow from Investing Activities {3,03,20,93,663) {11,03,00,31,300)
€ Cash Flow from Finaicing Activities
Issue of Share Capital ) 1.42.86,508 21,73,16,400
Securities Premiwn received 2,98,57,13,550 8,58,57,20,532
Changes i long tenn Berrowings 30.81,278 -
Changes in short tenn borrowings 23,54,67.954 (15,24,61,879)
Interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid (8,66,84.415) {4,76,20,067)
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 3,15,18,04.875 8,60,29.66,994
Net Ircrease/{Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 7,94,77.302 9,34,926
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the vear 1(1,59,338 124,412
Cash & Cash cquivalent at the end of the year §.05,36,640 10,59,338

upees

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: (Note 7}

Cash or: Hand 4,27.610 427610
Balances with Banks §,01,09,030 6,31,728
Cash and cash equivalents §,05.36,640 10,59,338

The accompuiyiing notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Notes:

I The cash tlow statement las beei prepared under the indirect method as set oot in Budian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.
2 Purchasc of property, plant & equipment / imangible assets include movement of capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development during fie year,

For and on behalf of the hoard of directors of
Arvingd Fashions Linitted

oL ,0;\ ¢ ~

As per our repoit ol even date
For Serab 5. Engincer & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Finm's Repistracion No. 1104 77W

Uraelle S b "

CA. Clioksh! Shreyas B. Kutiu 8, Lalbhai avesh K. Shah
Parinet Diyretler ) Inrector
Membership Ne. 100892 DIiN-D320583F HN-GUGU8340

Place : Banpalore Place : Bazgnlore Place ; Bangalore -

Date : May 3, 2018 Date - May 3,201E Date . May 3,20i8 m

At

Kannan 8§

Chief Financial Cllicer
Plice . Bangalore
Date : May 3.2018

B.S. Mifdy Kunur
Compaty Secretary
Place : Bangulore

Date : May 3.2C18



Arvind Fzshions Limited
(Formerly Known as Arvind F&M Limited)

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2018

A. Equity share capital

Balance

As at Aprit 01, 2016 1,060,000
Issue of Equity Share capital 21,73,16,400
As at March 31,2017 21,74,16,400
lssue of Fquity Share capital 1,42,86,508
As at March 31, 2018 23,17.02,908

B. Other equity

Attributable to the equity iolders

Rupees

eserves and Su rplus

Balance as at April 1,2016 - - (11,649) 4,932 6,717y
Profit /(1.oss) for the year - (3,53,94,709) - (3,53,94,709)
Other comprehensive income for the year - {9,79,568) 87,670 (8,91,898)
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - (3,63,742TT 87,670 (3,62,86,607)
Issue of share capital { Note | l} 8.58.57,26.532 8,58,57,26,532
Share Based Payments for Emnployee Stock Option 1o

Holding Co. (Note 33) - 33.90,347 {33.90,347) - -
Share Based Payments for Employee Stock Option to

Subsidiary Co. (Note 33} ) 26.17,756 i 26,17.756
Share Based Payments for-Employee Stock Option. } 704676 A A 714,676
{Note 33}

Transfer from Qther Comprehensive Incoine - - 92,767 - 92,767
Transfer 1o Retained Earings - - - (92,767) (92,767)
Balance as at March 31,2017 8,58,57,26,532 67,22.779 (3,96,83,506) (165) §,55,27,65,640
Balance as at Aprit 1, 2017 8.58.57,26,532 67,212,779 (3,96,83,506) (165) 8,55,27,65,640
Profit i Loss) for the year - 533987211 - 53,39,87,211
Giher comprehensive income for the year - {6,44,266) 9,720 (6,34,546)
Totat C.omprehensive income for the year - - 53,33,42.945 9,720 53,33,52,665
Issue 2f share captal { Note 11) 2.95,09,22.002 2,99,09,22.902
Utilized during the year for bonus shares (52.00 352) (52,09,352)
Share Based Payments for Employee Stock Option to

Helding Co (Note 33) - 11,39,194 (71.39.194) - E
Share Based Fayments for Emplayec Steck Option 1o

Subsidiary Co. ();I’:}!e 33) o ’ 5295268 B ) 52,95,268
Share Based Payments for Employee Stock Option. 16,38.404 i i 16,38,404
{Note 13} .

Balance as at March 31,2018 11,57,14,40,082 2,07,95,645 48,65,20,245 9,555 12,07,87,65.527

The azcompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements,
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

I.

Corporate Information

Arvind Fashions Limited (forinerly known as Arvind J&M Limited) (‘the Company’) is engaged in the
business of Readymade Garment Apparels and Accessories. The Company and its subsidiaries is marketing
in India the branded apparel under various brands. The brands portfolic of the Company includes Domestic
and International brands like Flying Machine, Arrow, US Polo, Nautica, GANT, GAP, TCP Izod, Elle,

Cherokee etc.

The Company is a Subsidiary of Arvind Limited and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Cempany is located at Naroda Road, Ahmedabad -

380025,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
May 3, 2018,

2, Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as
issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards specified in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian GAAP”) and other relevant provision

of the Act.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statemers have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

+ Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

¢  Share based payments;
e Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;
+  Value in Use



3.

3.1

3.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial
statements consistently to all the periods presented:

. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/nén-current
classification.

An asset is current when it is:
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period; or
¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
o It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies alt other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable,
it is assumed to be twelve months.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumiptions and factors
{including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing
circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred
after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.



3.3.

34.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currenicy spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such transaction and on
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate
are recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on t{ranslation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or

loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
thie presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o Inthe principal market for the asset or liability
Or
s Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
o Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. is directly or indirectly observable.
¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recwring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such as asset held for

sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of external
valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion with and approval by the Company’s
Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs o use for each case.

At each repotting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required io be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevdnt external sources to determine whether the change is

reasonable on yearly basis,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevani notes.

* Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)



3.5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
paits of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
an asset after its use is included in‘the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision

are met.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are
ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended
use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement »f Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less residual
values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule 1I to the Companies Act 2013 except for Plant and Machinery, Leaschold Improvements and

Furniture & Fixtures.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted for as
separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining useful
life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation on Plant and Machinery, Leasehold Improvements, Fumiture & Fixtures and Vehicles is
provided on straight line basis over the useful lives of the assets as estimated by management based on
intemal assessment. The management estimates the useful lives for Plant & Machinery at’s years, Leaschold
Improvements and Furniture & Fixtures at 6 years.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual values, usefui lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each {inancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.



3.6. Leases

3.

3.8.

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Finance leases that transfer
to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalised at the commericement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the
Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated usefulflife of the asset and the lease term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term except the
case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect and lease expense is accounted in such case by
actual rent for the period.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at. cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
expenditure is incurred.

The usetul lives of infangible assets are assessed as finite.
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life.or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
Brand Value and License Brands acquired under Business Transfer Agreement will be amortized on

Straight Line basis up to March 31, 2019.

3.9. Inventories

Inventorics of Raw material, Stock-in-trade and Packing Material are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product 1o its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

o Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis,

e Stock in Trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

All other inventories are valued af cost. The stock of waste is valued at net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.10. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the

‘Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is

considered impaired and is written down to its. recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific



to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions ar¢ taken into account, if
available, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for a property
previcusly revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrving amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is récognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.11. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company,
the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless
of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking info account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude
and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with delivery of goods. Revenue from export
sales are recognized on shipment basis. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable including excise duty, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts

and volume rebales.

Sale of goods - customier loyalty programme (deferred revenue)
The Company operates a loyalty point programume which allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase the products. The points can be redeemed for free products, subject to a minimum number of



points being obtained. Consideration received is allocated between the preduct sold and the points issued,
with the consideration allocated to the points equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined
by applying a statistical analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the points are redeemed.

Sales Return
The Company recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis

of the margin of the sales.

Rendering of services

Revenue from store displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the period for which the products
or the sponsors” advertisements are promoted/ displayed. Facility management fees are recognised pro-rata
over the period of the contract.

Interest income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as

fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

Insurance claims
Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is reasonably certain

of their ultimate collection.

3.12. Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any coniract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability
or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are recognised initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assefs not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financiat assets. |

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits (o purchase. or sell the assel.



(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

¢ Financial assets at amortised cost

= Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

* Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amortised cost -
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initiatly as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensi\}e
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value
through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates



a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments:

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with ail
changes recognized in the P&L

(iif) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the-contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control ol

the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Company could be required to repay.
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(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company deternunes classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in
the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair wvalue is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new
gross carrying amount,

Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

FvOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amorlised cost carrying amount, However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Curnulative

gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
to P&L at the reclassification date.

(v} Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (BECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

cxposure:



o Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost €. g loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

s Trade receivables or any contraciual right te receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
»  Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing component
e Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing component, if the Company applies
practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money, and

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporfing date,

right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Conipany expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contraciual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the petiod is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&1.). This amount is reflected in a separate line under
the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments 1is described below:
¢ [inancial assets measured as at amortised cost and contract assets: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance fiom the gross. carrying amount.



For assessing increase in credit. risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments. on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets,
i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(i} Imitial recognition and measurement of financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

(if) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of* profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

= Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses



are recognised in profil or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the staterment of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

c) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to seitle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.13. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalems consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are censidered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management,

3.14. Export incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports
C’ s+ based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

/
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3.15. Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
cither in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax _
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of dssets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

¢ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

* Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
Joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controtled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fiture.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that i is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

©  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

¢ Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recoguised only to the extent that it s
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

6‘ The carrying amount of deferved tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent thai

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are

recognised to the extent that it has becoine probable that fiture taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.



Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the -asset is realised or the lability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
cither in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsct if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there is
convineing evidence that the Company will pay nornmal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The
Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.

3.16. Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employce Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated abseﬁces, awards,
exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are recognised in the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme, employees’ state
insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution paid/payable under such schemes. The
coniribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes arc
Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at
the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from
P the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts inciuded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are



recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earmings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

¢) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present
value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is
reduced from.the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

d) Termination Benefits :
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are recognised in the

year in which termination benefits become payable.

3.17. Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments {equity-settied
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made

using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits
expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
assoctated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions,

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met, An additional expense is



recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is
cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

3.18. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary ‘shares.

3.19. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.



4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

4.1.

4.2.

Significant judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statcments:

Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner is acting as a
principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary obligation for pricing latitude and
exposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale of goods. The Company has concluded that
certain arrangements are on principal to agent basis where its business partner is acting as an agent. Hence,
sale of goods to its business partner is recognised once they are sold to the end customer.

Estimates and assumption

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when

they occur.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-ermployment benefits and the present value of the
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies
of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond
with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for
quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the
discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 30.



Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be .
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements inciude considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 36 for further disclosures,

Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a binomial
model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to
be measured at the time of grant. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with fubire tax planning strategies.

The Company has Rs. Nil/~- (March 31, 20(7: Rs. 2,01,09,104) of unused losses available for offsetting
against future taxable income. The Company has taxable temporary difference and tax planning
opportunities available that could partly support the recognition of these credits as deferred tax assets.
Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 26,

Revenue recognition - Customer loyalty prograin reward points

The Company estimates the fair value of points awarded under the Customer loyalty program by applying
statistical techniques. Inputs to the model include making assumptions about expected redemption rates,
the mix of products that will be available for redemption in the fiture, expiry of loyalty points and customer
preferences. Such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. As at 31 March 2018, the estimated
liability towards unredeemed points amounted to approximately Rs. 1,21,45,953/- (March 31, 2017: Rs.
Nil).

Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.8 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The catrying value of Intangible assets has

been disclosed in Note 6.

Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 3.5 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.



Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
- value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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Arvind Fashions Limited
{Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 6: Intangible assets

Gross Carrying Value

As at April 1, 2016 - - -
Additions - 21,26,77,109 21,26,77,109
Deductions - -

As at April 1, 2017 - 21,26,77,109 21,26,77,109
Additions 15,752 - 15,752
Deductions . - .
As at Mar 31,2018 15,752 21,26,77,109 21,26,92,861

Amortisation and Impairment

As at April 1, 2016 - - .

Amortisation for the Year - 3,66,68.467 3,66,68,467
Deductions - - -
As at April 1, 2017 - 3,66,68,467 3,66,68,467
Amortisation for the Year 3,745 8.80,04,316 8.80,06.061
Deductions - - -
As at Mar 31,2018 3,745 12,46,72,783 12,46.76,528

Net Carrying Value

As at Mar 31,2018 12 007 8,80,04,326 8,80,16,333

As at March 31, 2017 - 17,60,08,042 17,60,08,642




Arvind Fashions Limited
(Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 (a) Investments

As dat March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

In Rs. In Rs.
Non-current investment
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries (Linquoted)
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited #
{315t March 2018 : 7.689,488: 31st March 2017: 6,464.999) 1,02,55,69.658 90.50,99,860

Face Valuc Rs 10.

Arvind Lifestyle Brand Ltd ##
(31st March 2018: 81,278,723, 31st March 2017: 54,397.003)
Face Value Rs 10

Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(31st March,2018: 5,04.648: 31st Mar 2017: 4.57,671)
Face Value Rs 10.

Toizuny Hiffiger Arvind Fashion Pvt Ltd
{3 st March,2018: 1,49,47,159: 31st March 2017: 11.461.839)
Face Value Rs 10.

9.23.44,11.216

28.93,53.858

86,27.10.340

6,72.49,39.756

16.47,61,560

63.77.10,240

11,41,20.45.072 8,48.25,11,516

Current investment
Investment in equity shares of others
Quaoted

Arvind Infrastructure Ead 18.375 8,653

{31st March 2018: 100. 3¥st March 2017: 100)

Face Value Rs 10,
Total lnvestments 11,41,20,63,447 8,48,25,20,171
Total non-current investments 11,41,20,45,072 8,48,25,11,516
‘Fotal current investments 18,375 8,035

# Inerease in the cost ol investment during the year includes recognitian of cost of ESOPs issued 1o Employees of the same is

detailed below:

Rupees
Subsidiarices 2017-18 2016-17
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 48.25,392 20,17.756
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited 4,69.876 -

* Increasc in the Cost of investment during the period includes recognition of Notional Commission on Fair Valuation of Firancial
Guarantee provided for loan taken by subsidiary. The Samc is detailed below:

Rupees

Subsidiarices

2017-18

2016-17

Arvind Lifestyle Brands [Limited

46.46,109

7 (b) Trade receivables

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018
in Rs.

As it Mareh 31, 2017
In Rs.

Currest
Unsecured. consadered good

37.73.12.240

34.32.43.449

Tota! Trade and ether receivables

37,73,12.240

34,32 43,449




7 (¢) Loans ‘
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
In Rs. In Rs.
Unsecured considered good
Non-current
Loans to employecs 35,72,755 16,07,980
35,72,755 16,07,980
Current
Loans to employees 1,27,54,106 17,12,077
1,27,54,106 17,12,077
Total Loans 1,63,26,861 33,20,057
7 (d) Cash and cash equivalent
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
in Rs. In Rs.
Balance with Bank
Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 8,01,09,030 6,31,728
Cash on hand 427610 4,27,610
Total cash and cash equivalents 8,05,36,640 10,59,338
7 (e) Other bank balance
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
In Rs, In Rs.
In Deposit Account
Held as Margin Money* 2,67,957 2,50,000
Total other bank balances. 2,67,957 2,50,000
Total cash and bank balances 8,08,04,597 13,09,338
* Under lien with bank as Security for Guarantee Facility
7 (£} Other financial assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March-31, 2017
in Rs. In Rs.
Non-current
Security deposits 12,33,90,010 4,25,23,643
12,33,90,010 4,25,23,643
Current
Accrued Interest 6,244 6,041
Insurance claim receivable 11,05,402 -
11,11,646 6,041
Total {inancial assets 12,45,01,656 4,25,29,684

4



7 (g} Financial assets by category

Particulars Cost FVTPL EVQCI Amortised cost

31- March-2018

Investments

- Equity shares 11,48,20,45,072 - 18,375 -
Trade receivables - - - 37,73,12,240
Loans - - 1,63,26,861
Cash & Bank Balances - - - 8.,08,04,597
Other Financial Assets - - - 12,45,01,636
Total Financial assets 11,41,20,45,072 - 18,375 59,89,45,354
31- March-2017

Investments

~ Equity shares 8,48,25.11,516 8,655 -
Trade receivables - - 34,32,43.449
Loans - - - 33,20,057
Cash & Bank Balances - - - 13,09,338
Other Financial Assets - . - 4,25,29,684
Total Financial Asscts 8,48,25,11,516 - 8,655 39,04,02,528

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 38

Fair-value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 36 and fair value hicrarchy disclosures for investment are in Note 37,

Note 8 : Other current/ non-current asscts

. As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Particulars
In Rs. In Rs.
Non-current
Capital advances [,52,68,315 10,34,756
1,52,68,315 19,34,756
Current
Advance to suppliers 3,88,24,216 3.26,77,562
GST/ Sales tax / VAT / service tax receivable (net) 10,07,73,521 16,063,617
Export incentive receivable 3,96,078 27,53,217
Prepaid expenses 1,66,98,155 1,47.85,534
Other Current Assets 22.09,14, 883 -
38,36,00,853 5,18,79,930
Total 39,88,75,168 5,29,14,686
Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
. As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Particulars
In Rs, In Rs.
Raw materjals
Raw materials and components 1,51,07,664 1,37,51,984
Raw- materials in transit 56,228 2.i8,905
Stock-in-trade 2,49.01,83,614 2.53,80,64,805
Stock-in-trade in transit 2,30,41,084 _94,1 7.671
Packing materials 0,39,493 4,75,939
Total 2,52,90,28,083 2,56,19,29,304
Note 10 : Current Tax Assets (Nef)
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
in Rs. In Rs.
Tax Paid 1 Advance (Net of Provision) - 4,32,024
- 4,32,024

Total




Arvind Fashions Limited
{Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statenients

Note 11 : Equity sliare capital

As at March 31, 2018

As at Mareh 31, 2017

Particul

ariieliars No. of shares In Rs. No. of shares In Rs.
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs.2 each 12,50,00.000 25,00,00,000 12,50,00,000 25,00,00,000
Issued and subscribed share capital
Equity shares of Rs.2 cach 11,58,51,454 23,17.02,908 10,87,08,200 21,74,16,400
Subseribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.2 each 11,58,51,454 23,17,02,908 10,87,08,200 21.74,16,400
Total 11,58,51,454 23,17,02,908 10,87,08,200 21,74,16,400

11.1. Reconciliation of shares ontstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Particulars ) _
No, of shares In Rs. No. of shares In Rs:

At the beginning of the period [0,87,08,200 21,74,16,400 50,000 1,000,000

Add -

Shares itssued during the year 71,43.254 1,42,86,508 10,86,58,200 21,73,16,400

Oulstanding at the end of the period i1,58,51.454 23,17,02,908 10,87,08,200 21,74,16,400

11.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as. equity shares having a par value of Rs.2 each. Each shareholder is entitled 1o one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directars is subject Lo the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeling. In the evént of hquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible 1o receive the remaining assels of the Company after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion fo their shareholding.
11.3. Shares Held by Holding Company

. As af March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Particulars
No. of shares In Rs. No. of shares In Rs.
Arvind Limited - {along with nominges) 16,39,06,759 20,78,13,518 9,75,00,000 19,50,00,600
11.3. Number of Shares held by cach shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company
As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
{ the Sharehol o o
Name of tiie Shareholder No. of shares Yo of . No. of shares 7o of N
shareholding shareholding

iiolc{:ng Company - Arvind Limited {along with 10,39.06,759 89.69% 975 00,000 89.69%
nominees)
IMenty Private Equity Fund 1 Limited 78,70,9i6 6.79% 73,85,605 6.79%

11.4. Subdivision of Shares

With effect front 26th September 2016 the nominal face value of aquity shiues.of the Clompany was sub-divided from Rs. 10 per

share to Rs 2 per share.

11.4. Bonus Shares lssued

26,04,676 Equily Shares are alloted as bonus shares by eapitalization of Securities premium during the year

J1i.6. Shares reserved for issue under options
Refler Note 32 for details of shares to be issued under options

15,7 Objeciive, policy and precedure of capital managenient, refer Notc 39

?




Arvind Fashions Limiled

{Formerly Known as Arvind 16&M Limited)

Notes to the Finarcial Statements

Note 12 : Other Equity

As at March 31,2017
T Rs.
Note 12.1 Reserves & Surplus
Securities premium account
Balante as per Jast financial statements 8,58,57,26,532 -
Add: addition during the year 2,99,09,22,902 8,58,57,26,532
Less: utilized during the year for bonus shares (52,09,352) -
Balance at the end of the year 11,57,14,40,082 8,58,57,26.532
Share based payment reserve (Refer Note 33)
Balance as per last financial stalements 67,22,779 .
Add: Addition during the year 1,40,72,866 67,22,779
Balance at the end of the year 2,07,95,645 67,22,779
Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial staiements {3.96,83,500) (11,649)
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year 53,39,87,211 (3,53,94,709)
Add: Transfer from O] - 92,767
Add / (Less). OCI for the year (6,44,266) (9,79.568)
49,36,59,439 (3,62,93,159
Less: Appropriation
Dividend to Holding Company for ESOP (71,39,194) (33,90,347)
Balange ai the end of the year 48,65,20,245 {3,96,83,506)
Total reserves & surplus 12,07,87,55.972 8,55,27,65,805
Note 12.2 Other comprehensive income
Equity Instruments ¢through OCI (net of tax)
Baiance as per last financial statements (1635) 4,932
Add: gain during the year 9,720 87,670
Less : Transfer to Retained Earnings . {92.767)
Balance at the end of the year 9,555 (165)
Total Other comprehensive income 9,555 {165}
Total Other equity 12,07,87,65.527 §.55,27,05.640

Note 13 : Financial liabilitics

13 (a) Long-term Borrowings

Long-term Berrowings (Refer Note T below)

Non-current portion

Secured
Term Ioan from Banks, 25,40,844 -
25,40,844 -
Current manirities
Secured
Tenm loan from Banks-Current 540,434
5,40,434 -
Tutal long-term horrowings 30,81,278
Short-term Borrowings (Refer Note.IT below)
Unsecured
Working Capital Leans repayable on demand from Banks 25,00.00,000 1,27,24.816
Undet Buyer's Credit Arrangement 21,08,97,992 13,98,36,396
Intercoiporate Deposits
From Retated Parcties B 7,28,68,826
Total short-term borrowings 46,08,97,992 22,54,30,038

Toial burrewings 46,39,79,270 22,54,30,038




Arvind Fashions Limited
{Formerly Known as Arvind }&M Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Details of Term Loans

a  Nature of Security
Hire Purchase Loan from Banks and Others of s 3(:,81.27% are secured by hypothecation of velated vehicles.

b Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment

| Range Of
Interest

1

From Banks

Hire Purchase Loan Monthly payment of Equated Monihly
108 Instalments beginning from the month
81,278 subsequent to taking the loans

8.5% to 9%

I Details of Short Term Borrowing
a Working Capital Loan of Rs 25,00,00.000 js guazanteed by Arvind Limited, the Holding company.

b Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment
i. Warking Capifal Loans from banks-carry interest rates ranging from §,60% and are repayable on Demand
ii. Buyer's Credit carry interst at the rate of 2.17% 10 3 74% .

13 (b) Trade payable

Current
Acceplances 87.05,49,084 &1,00,61,067
Dues to'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 4,69.01,143 10,98,75,623
Other trade payable (Refer note below) [,24.47,64,387 98,42,73,396
Total 2,16,22,14,584 1,90,48,10,086

a Acceptance and Other trade payables ave not-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-50 days terms

b
R
(a) I’{mmpal tfmount and the interest due theredn remaining vnpaid to-any suppliers as at the 4,65,01,113 10.98.75,623
end of accounting year;
(b) Interest paid during the year; 41,24,390
(e) Amcunt of payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appointed day during accosinting 539,25.22.495 21.47,68,973
year;
{d) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment; 76,77,223 26,26,786
(e} Interest-accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting vear; and 76,77,223 26,26,786

(f) Further interest remaining due and payabie even in the succeeding years, until such dae
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise.

13 (¢) Oriher financial liabilities

Non-current

Security Deposit 2,05,70.000 04,006,000
Financia! Guarantee Contract- Non Curmrent ¢ Notea) 85220
2 06,55,221F 94,00,000
Current ‘
Current maturity of fong term borrowings 5,401,434 -
Interest reerued but not due 1,57,32,690 96,93,11]
Interest accrued and due 76,77,223 26,206,786
Payable 10 employees 52142471 3,16,77,347
Payable for Besiness Transfer Agreement - 13,25,08,026
Bock overdrafl 28,700 18,70,570
Payable in respect of capital goods ) 1,7¢,81,828 66,94,933
Financia! Guarantee Contract- Current (Note a) 6,31,571 -
9,39,34,923 18,50,70,773
Total 11,45,90,143 19.44,70,773

a) Financial guarantee contruct

The Company has given the Anancial grarantee fo Banks on behalyof Subsidiary Cumpany

#



Arvind Fashions Limited
{Formerly Enown as Arvied J&M Limited)
Notes to the Financial $1atements

13 (d) ¥inancial liabilities by category

Particulars = FVOCL Arortised CosE

March 31,2018

Borrowings 46,39,79.270

Trade payable 2,16,22,14,584

Other financial liabitities 11,40.49,709
2,74,02.,43,563

Total Financial liabilities

Particilar: CFVOQCL

March 31,2017

Barrowings 22,54,30,038
Trade payable 1,90,48,10,086
Other fingncial liabilities 19,44,70,773
Total Financial liabilitics 2,32,47,10,897

For Financial instraments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 38
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 36 and fair value hierarchy diselosures for investment are in Note 37.

Note I14: Provisions

Long-term
Provisien for employce henefits (refer Note 30)
Provision for leave encashment-Long term 1,61,58,81] 1,59,97,626
Provision for Gratuity-Long term 1,91,62,334 1,62,84,405
3,53,21,145 3,22,82,031
Short-term
Provision for employec benefits {refer Note 30
Provision for leave encashment-Short term 20,190,971 25,18,995
Provision for Gratuity-Short term - 10,77,987
20,10,971 : 35,596,982
Tofal 3,73,32,116 3,58,79,013

Note 15 :- Other current liabilities

Current
Advance from customers 38,00,000 50,80,79,170
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 6,30,17,153 B,31,15,115
Deferred income of loyalty program reward points { Refer notc a below} 1,21,43,953 -
Other liabilities - 1,15,17,737
Total 7,89,63,106 60,27,12,022

Deferred income of Loyalty Program Reward Points
The Company has deferred the revenue related to the customer loyalty program reward points, The movement in deferred revenue for those reward poins are-given below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2018
In Rs.
Provisicn made during the year( net of Exphy) 8.28,09,637
(Less): Redemption made during the year (7,06,63,684)
Balance at the end of the yvear 1,21,45,953
Note 16: Curroeni tax liabilities (net)
Particulars Ags at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
In Rs. In s,
Current tax Habilities (net of Advance Fax) . 48,853,974 -
Total 48,85,974 -




Arvind Fashions Limited
(Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 17 : Revenue from operations

Sale of products ‘ 8,41,70,22,658 2,91,52,26,237

Sale of services 4,97.93,270 ' 21,12.300

Operating income

Waste sale 4,04 840 -
Export incentives 79,35,022 55,30,402
83,39,862 55,30,402
Total 8.47.51,55,790 2,02,28,68,939

Note 18 : Other income

Interest income 97,282 6,712
Financial guarantee commission # 39,29,318 -

Exchange difference (net) 66,95,866 33,86,191
Miscellaneous income - 1,14,818 3,36,786
Total 1,08,37.284 57.29,689

# Company has given financial guarantee to bank on behalf of Subsidiary Company. Fair Value of Financial guarantee has been
accounted as liability and amortised over the period of loan as commission income to the extent it is excess over the loss allowance
provided.

Note 19 : Cosf of raw materials and accessories consumed

Stock a1 the beginning of the year [,37,51,984 -
Add : Purchascs 1,27.56422 1,51,47,154
2,65,08,406 1,51,47,154
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 1,51,07,664 1,37,51,984
Raw materials and accéssories consumed 1,14.00,742 13,95,170
Total 1,14,00,742 13,95,170

Note 20 : Purchasesof stock-in-trade

Garments 5,33,40,57,380 4,47,33,57,278
Total 5,33,40,57,380 4,47,33,57,278




Arvind Fashions Limited

{Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 21 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Stock at the end of the year
Stock-in-trade

2,49,01,83,614

2,53,80,64.805

2,49,01,83,614 2,53,80,64,805
Stock at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade 2,53,80,64,805 -
2,53,80,64,805 -
(Increase) / Decrease in stocks 4,78,81,191 (2,53,80,04,805)
Total 4,78,81,191 (2,53,80,64,805)

Note 22 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. (Refer Note 30) 44,90,93,333 23,76,84,594
Contribution to provident and other funds 345,610,881 1,002,76,663
Welfare and fraining expenses 2,48,77.810 71,58,002
Share based payment to employees {Refer Note 33) 16,38,404 7,14,676
Total 51,01,71,428 25,58,33,995

Note 23 : Finance costs

Cash Credit Facilities 57.18,579 12,312,472
Interest expense - others 2,20,35,379 3,30,83,376
Other finance cost 7,00,20,479 1,33,04,219
Total 9.,77,74,437 4,76,20,067

Note 24 : Depreciation and amortization expense

Bepreciation on Tangible assets (Refer Note 5) 2,69,10,474 30,80,594
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 8,80,08.061 366,68, 467
Total 11,49,18,535 3,97,49,061




Arvind Fashions Limited

{Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes to-the Financial Statements

Note 25 : Other expenses

Power and fuel 86,94,917 56,73,380
Insurance 58,34,208 1,360,835
Processing charges 1,62,62,217 20,29,504
Printing, stationery & communication 1,70,10,674 51,31,613
Rent Expenses (note 35) 9,58,21,795 7.54,61.477
Commission & Brokerage 13,23,53,583 8,15,57.671
Rates and taxes 1,34,47,935 1,71,21,840
Repairs :

To Building 15,79,842 4,88,567

To others 1,04,57,219 75,92,162
Royalty on Sales 64,20,12,494 25,91,82,251]
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 11,14,15,265 3,41,69,103
Octroi 1,09,53,917 1,31,17,081
Legal & Professional charges 1,03,52,373 1,06,97,945
Housekeeping Charges 75,88,615 25,15,324
Security Charges 95,54,457 34.43,196
Computer Expenses 5,063,192 38,890
Conveyance & Travelling expense 3,57,26,595 1,01,30,600
Advertisement and publicity 24,36_,39_,827 8.60,32,711
Sales Promotion 1,10,08,059 2,13,380
Charges for Credit Card Transactions 76,31,795 39,61,874
Packing Materiais Expenses 3,78,60.165 1,78,33,937
Contract Labour Charges 8.40,65,348 1,67,49,435
Sampling and Testing Expenses 5,90,06,777 1,27,86,031
Director's sitting fees 6,88,800 1,004,000
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below) 40,76,588 32.20,000
Business Conducting Fees 2,14,559 -
Bank charges 16,48,597 4.48,282
Warehouse Charges 2,83,28,640 2,03,86,272
__Nl:lscc]lancous expenses 2,18,20.815 i,45,74,125
Total 1,62,96,79,358 70,47,96,486

Payment to Auditors (Net of Taxes)

Payment to Auditors as

Auditors 28,00.000 28,20,600
For tax audit 3,15,000 1,50,000
For Other certification work 7.45.600 1,50,060
For reimbursement of expenses 2,15988 100,000

Total 40,76,588 32,20,000




Arvind Fashions Limited
(Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited}
MNotes to the Financial Statemenis

Note 26 : Income tax
The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 207 arc -

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax

Current income tax 223749741 -
Deferred tax

Deferred tax expense/(income) (1,76,26,949) (2,06,93,915)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 20,61,22,792 (2,06,93,915)

OCI section

Statement to Other comprehensive income (OCE)
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses (3.,46,060) (5,18,426)

Deferred tax charged to OCI (3,46,060} (5,18,426)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year'ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017,
A} Current tax

Accounting profit/(lossy before tax from continuing operations 74,01,10,003 {5,60,88,624)
Tax @.28.84% (March 31, 2017: 30.80%) 21,34,47,725 {1,73,31,385)
Adjustment

Expenses w's 35 DD (41,80,590) {44,79,20%)
Lower Tax Rate benefit and others (55,27,613) -
Gaurantee Commission Income {11,45,079} -
Gain on fair valvation of Investment - taxable on realisation - 1,524
(hher non deductible expense 35,32,949 11,135,149
At the effective income tax rate of 27.85% (March 31, 2017 -36.9%) 20,61,22,792 (2,06,93,915)
B) Beferred tax -

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 2,34,13,384 32,64,940 (2,01,48,44 (32,64,940)
Expenditure allowable on payment basis(43 B} 1,49,20,608 23,87,500 {1.26,03,108) (23,17,500)
Expenditure allowabie aver the period (Seetion 350/ 3500 - (44,79,203) (44,79,203) 44,779,203
Employee Stock Option 8,51,358 “ (8,351,358} -
Unused losses available for offsctling against future taxable income - 2,01,09,104 20109104 {2,01,09,104)
Delerred tax expensc/{income) (1,79,73,009) £2,12,12 341}
Net deferred tax assets/(abilities) 39185350 2,12,12341

Reflected in the balance-sheet as follows

Deferred tax assels 3,91,85,330 2.12,12,343
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Deferred tax labilities (net) 3,51,85,350 2,12,12,341

Opening balance as of April 1 212,312,341 -

Tax income/(expense)} during the period recognised in profit or loss [,76,26,94% 2,06,93913
Tax income/(expense) during the peried recognised in QC1 346,060 5,18.426
Closing balance as at March 31 3,91,85,350 2,12,12,341

The Company otfsets tax assels and liahifities if and only if it has a legally enforceabie right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax asseis and deferred 1ax abilities relate 16 incoine taxes levied by the same tax authority.



Arvind Fashions Limited
(Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited}
‘Notes 1o the Financial Statements

Note 27 : Contingent liabilities

Contingent liahilities not provided for
a. Bills discounted 7,85,61,050 -
b.Guarantee given by the company to the bank on behalf of Subsidiary 2,60,41,97,352

Note 28 : Capital commitment and other commitments

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of Contiacts remaining to be executed 71,37,632
on capital account and notprovided for

86,30,903

Other commitinents

Note 29 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged

A. Exposure Not Hedged

Receivables UsD 10,61,435 6,91,79,033  11,64,911] 7,55,44,506

Payable towards borrowings USD 32,315,873 21,08,97,993 21,61,278 14,01,58,901

Payable to creditors USD 8,53,145 5,56,03,706  3,51,502 2,27.94.874
-
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Arvind Fashions Limited

{Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 31 : Segment

The Company's business activity falls within a single primary business segment of Branided Apparels.
Accordingly the Company is a single segment company in accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment”.

Geographical segment

Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.

Segment Revenue*

a) In India 8.27,14,04,229 2.83,04,17,729
b} Rest. of the world 20,37.,51,561 9,24,51,210
Total Sales 8,47,51,55,790 2,92,28,68,939
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets™*

a) In India 15,10,27,14,161 11,65,69,28,732
b) Rest of the world 6,91,79,033 7,65,53,240
Total 15,17,18,93,194 11,73,34,83,972
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets*™ (@

a) In India 20,90,64,107 22,51,07.674
b) Rest of the world - -
‘Total 20,90,64,107 22,51,07,674

* Based on location of Customers
** Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets and Deferred Tax Asset

Note:

The Company have | customer contributing Rs 224,87,37,472 to the revenue of the Company.
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Arvind Fashions Limited
(Formenly known az Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes te the Finandia? Statements

Note 32 : Earning per share

20161

Earing per sbare (Basic and Diluted)
Profit/[ Loss}) atiributzble to ordinary equity holders Rs. 53,39.872.211 13,53.94,709)

Tatal no, of exuity shares at the end of the year Nes. i1,58,51.434 19,87,08.200

Weighied average number of cquity shares

For basic EPS 1£,35,38,120 4,92,38.056
For difuted EPS 11,66,65967 5,21,84,009
Nominat value of equity shares Rs. 2 2
Basic earning per share Rs. 470 (0.7
Diluted eaming per share Rs. 4.58 (0.68)

Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighled average number of equity shares for basic EPS 11,36,38,120 4.92.38.056
Effect of dilution: Share options 2067847 2645,013
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the eflecy of dilution 11,66,05,967 5.71,84,069

Note 33 : Share based payments

The Compary has instituted Employee Stock Option Stheme 2016 (“ESOP 2016™). Under ESOP 2016 the Company,
atits.disceetion, may grant share option to the sentor employees of the Company and its Subsidiary Company. As on
March 31, 2018, the Company has gramed 34,72,17¢ options convertidle into equal nunsber of Equity Shares of face
value of 2 each, {including bonus cptions). The following table sets forth the particulars of the options under ESOP 2016:

Scheme ESOP 2016

Date of grant Gctober 25, 2016

Number of options granted 14,50,954. 1,73,752 and 18,47,473

Exercise price per option Rs. 52.79, Rs, 88 95 and Rs. 94.82

Fair Value of dption on Grant date Rs. 4343 Rs. {9.94 and Rs. 1745

Vesting period 31-0ct-17 for Grant [ and 11

Vesting requirements Time based vesting tor Girants [ and BPerformance based vesting for Grant [11

Exercise period Al the time of listing or al the time of sale of 3{% equity by promoters, whichever is earlier.
Metitod of settiement Through altotment of one equity share for each option granted.

The following table sets forth a summary of the activiry of options:

Options

Outstanding at the beginning of the period 33,94,114

Issued as adjustment during the year 78,065

Vested bul not exercised at the beginning of the pericd - -
Granted during the period - 3394114
Forfeited during the period -

Exercised during the pericd -
Expired during the period . R
Qutstanding at the end of the pericd 34,772,179 33.54.114
Exercisablo al the end of the period 16,24,706 -
Weighted average excreise price per option {Hs.) 76.96 78.73

Share optiens outstauding at the end of the vear have the following expiry date , excreise price and weighted average contraceual life of the options
outstanding at the end of the year :

T Exp“-‘ ;.ja'.

reé optio

3500116 e 52.79 1o 0452
3472179

Weighted average remaining confractual life

(Years} 4.3 o
(@ At the time of listing cr at the time of sale of $1% cquity by promoters, whichever is carlier.

The Company bas issued 78,063 oplions during the year ended on March 34, 2048(March 31,2017 : 33,94,1145. the [air value of the share based payment
aptions granted is detennined using the bincimial made! using the foHowing inputs at the grant date which takes in to accouni the exercise rice, lhe tenn of the
aption, the share price at the grant date, and the expecied price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend vietd and the risk fee interest rate tor the
termi of the option.

Particulars 31st March 2018
Share price s at measurement date (INR per share) Rs: 84.94
Expected veolatility 18.34%
Expecied tife (years) 4
Bividend vield %
Risk-free interest raie (%) 6.68%

Expense arésing fron share- based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share- bascd payment frapsactions rccognised in profit or loss as part ol employee beneflis expense were as follows @

pioyee option plan 16,38,404 14,076
Total emipleyce tisare based payment expense 16,358,404 7,14,676
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Arvind Fashions Limited
{Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes to the Financiat Statements

b

o

Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions :

Purchase of Goods and Materizls

Arvind Limited 9.32,41,076 1,03,51,143
Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited 9,80,55,755 5,37.67,841
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limiied 69,77,499 -
Sales of Goods and Materials
Arvind Limited 5,39,24,443 9,67,25,719
Arvind Lifestvle Brands Limited 2,24,871.37472 52,29,56,518
Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited 1,14,338
Remuneration
Mr Kannan Soundarajan £,50,17,871 24,54,709
Receiving of Services
Arvind Limited 7,98,200 -
Arvind Lifcstyle Brands Limited-Shared exps 7,75,36,262 12,53,56,941
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited-Agent Commission 1,41,354 2,68,27,738
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited-Royalty Exps 33,39,16,238 9,84,99.151
Rendering of Services
Arvind Limited-Royalty 2.21,58,531 -
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited-Commission on Gaurantee 3929318 -
Purchase of Assets
Arvind Litestyle Brands Limited 65,35,978
Interest Expense
Arvind Limited 29.41,263 67,99,296
Arvind Brands and Retail Limited - 2.07,9i,631
Business Transfer
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 2,53,25,08,025
Investments (Net)
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 2,50,00,00,000 1,99,99,99,950
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited 12,00,00,000 -
Catvin Klein Asvind Fashion Private Limited 28,93,53,858 -

Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Pvt Ltd

Reccivable in respect of Current Asscts
Arvind Limited
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Praivate Limited
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Mr Kamnan Souadarajan

Payable in respect of Loan
Arvind Limited
Arvind Brands and Retaill Limited

Payable in respect of Current Liabilities
Arvind Limited
Arvind Goodhifl Suit Mamfacturing Private Limited

86.27,10,340

3,79.23.204
7266
15,32,77,559
1,00,00,000

10,13,20,224
2,93,34,7147

86,41,061
7,28,68.826
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Arvind Fashions Limited

(Formerly Known as Arvind J&M Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 35 : Lease Rent

Operating Lease

Showrooms and other facilities are taken on lease period of 1 to 9 years with option of renewal.
The particulars of these leases are as follows: Rupees

017

3

Future Minimum leas¢ payments obligation on non-cancellable operating leases:
Noy fater thar one year - 5,98,10,825
Later than one year and not later than five years : . 3,01,87859
Later than five years - -

Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 9,58,21,795 7.54,61477




Arvind Fashions Limited
{Formerly Known as Arvind F&M Limited)
Notes to the Fiiancial Statements

Note 36 : Fair value disclosures for financial asscts and financial liabilities

s finaneial instruments, other than these with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fai

Set out befow is a comparison, by class, of the carrying ameunts and faie value of the Company’

values:

Financial assets
Invesiments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments mersured at fair value through OC! 18,375 8,655 18,375 8,655
Total 18375 8.655 18.375 8,655
Financial liabilitics

Borrowings 46.39,79.270  22,54,30,038 46,39,79.270 22.54,30,038
Total 46,39.79.270 _ 22.54.30,038 46,39,79.270 22.54 30,038

The managemens assessed that the fair values.of cash and cash equivalents, other-bank balances, loans trade reccivables, other current financial assets. trade payables and oeier curremt financial liabilities

approximate their cerrying amounts largely due 1o the short-term maturities of these instruments,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included a1 the ameunt at which the instrument could be exchanged in a.current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or

tiquidation sale. The following methods and asswinptions were used to estimate the fair valaes

The fair value of borrowings and other financial Tiabilitics is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debts on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Cotipary has determined that market participants would take into account when pricing the investments,

Note 37 : Fair value hicrarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities :

As at March 31, 2018
Assets measured at fair value
Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
Investment in Equity shares, quoted March 31, 2018 18,375 18375

As at March 31, 2017
Assels measured at fair value

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
[nvestment in Equity shares. quoted - March 31,2017 8.055 8655

Qua_milut‘ i

disclosu

As at March 31.2018
Liabilities disclosed at fair value
Bonowings March 31, 2018 46,39,79270 -

46.39,79.270

As at March 31,2017
Liahilitics disclosed at fair value

Bormowings March 31,2017 22,54,30,038 22,54, 30.038
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Arvind Fashions Limited

Noles to the Financial Statemments

Note 40 : Standards Issucd but not effective.

The standard issued, but tiot vet effective up fo the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements is disclosed below. The
Company intends to adopt this standard when it becomes eflective,

Appendix B 4o Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance considerstion

O March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ¢ “"MCA™”) has notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rutes, 2018
containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rale to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or incame, when an entity has received or paid advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

‘The amendment will come into force From i April 2018. The Compay is evaluating ihe requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial
statements. The effect on adoption of Tnd AS 21 is expected Lo be nsignificant.”

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended rules™).
As per the emended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18,
“Revenue” and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

Ind A8 115 infroduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be
recopnised when (or as) an enlity transfer control of goods or services to & customer at (he amount to which the entity expects (o be entitled. Further the
new standard requires enhmced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018,

‘The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

* Retrospective appreach - Under this approach the standard will he applied reteospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

* Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approacl).

‘The Company is evaluating the requirement of the smendment and the impact en the financial statements. The effect on ddoption of nd AS 115 is
expected to be insipnificant™

Note 41 ¢ Regreuped, Recast, Reclassified
Figures of the earlier year have been regrouped or reclassified to conform fo Tnd AS presentation requirements.




